PRA & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To,
The Members of,
TULIP INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Mfs TULIP INFRATECH PRIVATE
LIMITED (“the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 315t March, 2017, the
statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial
statemants that give a true and fajr view of the financial position, financial performance and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read
with Rule 7 of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records In accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
Judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit,

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of
3 the Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to cbtain audit evidence about the amounts and
the disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, Including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due-to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the, auditor
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considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the financial
staternents that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by
the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our infermation and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act In the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st
March, 2017, and Profit and its Cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the

Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we
give in the Annexure 1, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of
the Order, to the extent applicable.

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and abtained all the infarmation and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

{b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, “

(e} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st
March, 2017 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31st March, 2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.



{f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in Annexure 2 to this report;

{g) With respect to the other matters to be included In the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our

opinion and to the best of cur information and according to the explanations given
to us:

I. As detailed in note 31, the Company has disclosed the impact of pending
litigations.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were reqguired to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. The Company has provided disclosures in Note 33 to the standalone financial
statements regarding holdings as well as dealings In Specified Bank Notes during
the pericd from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016. Based on the audit
procedures performed and taking into consideration the Information and
explanations given to us, in our opinion, the total receipts, total payments and
total amount deposited in banks are in accordance with the books of account
maintained by the Company.

For PRA and Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 017903N,

Arvind Kumaf-ﬁupu -
Partner

Membership No. : G72416
Place: New Delhi
Date: 01.05.2017



ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph - 1 under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and

On the

Regulatory Requirements” of our Report of even date.)

basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and according to the informatian

and explanations given to us during the course of our audit, we report that:-

(i) a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including

b)

(i)

(i) (a)

(b)

(iv)

{v)

quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

As explained to us the Company has a phased program of physical verification of its
fixed assets which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. The management during the year has
physically verified all fixed assets and no material discrepancy were noticed on such
verification,

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title
deeds of immovable properties included in fixed assets are held in the name of
Company.,

The management has physically verified the inventory during the year. In our
opinion the frequency of such verification is reasonable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms and
other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Since there are no such loans, the comments regarding terms and conditions,
repayment of the principal amount & interest thereon and overdue amount are
not required.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not advanced any loans to persons covered under the provisions of
section 185 or granted securities under Section 186 &f the Act,

In our opinion and accerding to the information and explanation given to us, the
company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of
Section 73 to 76 and any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed
there under. As per the information and explanations given to us no order has
been passed by the Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or
Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other Tribunal against the company.

-
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{vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the company
pursuant to the rules made by the central government for the maintenance of cost
records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act. However we have not
made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether
they are accurate or complete.

(vii) [a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
company examined by us, in our opinion, the company has generally been regular
in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including
provident fund, employee’s state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, wealth-tax,
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other
material statutory dues applicable to it. There were no arrears of such dues at the
yearend which have remain outstanding for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

(b) The dues outstanding In respect of income tax on account of any dispute are as

follows:
Name of Statues Nature of Assessment Forums where Amount
Dues year to dispute is pending Outstanding
which the
matter
pertains
Income Tax Act, Income Tax 2007-08 Appeal filed by | 5,86,96,087/-
1961 company,
Allowed by ITAT
(Delhi).
Department has
moved to  High
Court.
Income Tax Act, Income Tax 2009-10 Appeal filed by| 20936576/
1961 company,
Allowed by [ITAT
{Delhi).
Department has
moved to  High
Court.
Income Tax Act, Income Tax 2008-09 Appeal filed by | 2,45,33,052/-
1961 company,
Allowed by [TAT
{Delhi).
Department has
moved to High
Court.
Income Tax Act, Incame Tax 2010-11 Income Tax 2,47,58,210/-
1961 Appellate Tribunal,
New Delhi




income Tax Act, | IncomeTax | 2011-12 Income Tax 2,64,30,300/- |
1961 Appellate Tribunal,
{ | New Delhi ]
Income Tax Act, Income Tax 2012-13 Income Tax 2,83,97 480/-
1961 Appellate Tribunal,
' New Delhi
Income Tax Act, Income Tax 2013-14 CIT (A} Income Tax, | 558,44 860/-
1961 Mew Delhi,
Income Tax Act, Income Tax 2014-15 CIT (A} Income Tax, | 93,85.010/-
1961 New Delhi.
Incame Tax Act, Income Tax 2015-16 CIT (A) Income Tax, | 1,04,05721/-
1961 MNew Delhi,
VAT Act Haryana 2011-12 Punjab & Haryana | 81,62,87,724/-
VAT High Court
Department

{wiit)

(ix)

(x}

(xi)

(xil)

(i)

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the
documents and records produced to us, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of borrowings to banks. The Company does not have any loans or
borrowings from financial institutions, government or debenture holders,

The Company did not raise any meney by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans during the year.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix} of the Order is not applicable.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the company,
carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India,
and according to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither
come across any instance of fraud on or by the company, noticed or reported
during the year, nor have we been informed of such case by the management.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the
managerial remuneration has been paid / provided in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule
V' to the Companies Act, 2013,

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi Company, Therefore, the provisions of
clause 3{xii) of the order are not applicable to' the Company and hence not
commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management,
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements, as reguired by the applicable accounting
standards. =
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(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the balance shest, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures
during the year under review and hence, reporting requiremeants under clause
3{xiv} are not applicable to the Company and, not commented upon.

(xw) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him as referred to in Section 192 of Companies Act, 2013,

{xwi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of
Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the

Company.
For PRA and Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 017903N &
Arvind Kumar Gupta
Place: New Delhi Partner

Date: 01.09.2017 Membership No. : 072416



ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

{Referred to in paragraph — 2(f) under the heading of "Report on Other Legal and Regulatary
Requirements” of our Report of even date.)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of TULIP INFRATECH
PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date,

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note") Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl). These
respansibilities Include the design, Implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial cantrols that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company's paolicies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial Information, as
required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsiblility

Our responsibllity |s to express.an apinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Mote and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
cantrols, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note reguire that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adeguate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively [n all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adeguacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness,

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls ever financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of Internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of materisl misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficlent and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

%



Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Campany's internal financial control over financial reporting Is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the rellability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with genarally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting inciudes those policies and procedures that {1} pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
sxpenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial contrels over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
milsstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financlal control over financial reporting may become
inadequate becsuse of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

in our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
gontrols system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the internal control
aver finaricial reporting criteria established by the Company copsidering the essential
components of internal control stated in the “Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Indla”.

For PRA and Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 017903N :

Arvind Kumar Gupta i
Place: New Delhi Partner .
Date: 01.09.2017 Membership No. : 072416



PRA & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To,
The Members of,
TULIP INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of M/s TULIP INFRATECH
PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st
March, 2015, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year
then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of
these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under

the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under,
FoRA&
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We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified
under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and the disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to
the Company's preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements,

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the
Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in confarmity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31st March, 2015, and Profit and its Cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As reguired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2015 (“the Order”),
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section
143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure, a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to

the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit.

HEW DELHI
FRE-OITH0IN



(b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books,

{c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the 'Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account,

{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

{e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
31st March, 2015 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2015 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(fl With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our infoermation and according to the
explanations given to us;

I. As detailed in note 31, the Company has disclosed the impact of pending
litigations.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Invester Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For PRA and Co.

Chartered Accountanss

Partner

Membership No. : 072416
Place: New Delhi
Date: 31.08.2015
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ferred to in pa h - 1 under ding of ¥ [} her Legal an

Regulatory Requirements” of our Report of even date.)

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and according to the

inform
that:-

ation and explanations given to us during the course of our audit, we report

(i} a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including

b)

quantitative details and situation of fixed assets,

As explained to us the Company has a phased program of physical verification
of its fixed assets which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size
of the Company and the nature of its assets. The management during the year
has physically verified all fixed assets and no material discrepancy were
noticed on such verification,

(i) (a) The management has physically verified the inventory during the year. In our

opinion the frequency of such verification is reasonable.

(b} In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the

(c)

procedures of physical verification of inventory followed by the
management are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the
company and the nature of its business,

In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the
company is maintaining proper records of its inventory and no material
discrepancies were noticed on physical verification of inventory as compared
to book records.

(iii) {(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to

us, the company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured, to
cbmpanies, firms and other parties covered in the register maintained under
Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.




{b) Since there are no such loans, the comments regarding terms and conditions,
repayment of the principal amount & interest thereon and overdue amount
are not required.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, there are adequate internal control procedures commensurate with the
size of the company and the nature of its business for the purchase of
inventary, fixed assets and with regard to the sale and services, Further, on
the basis of our examination of the books and records of the company, and
according to information and explanations given to us, we have neither
come across nor have been informed of any continuing failure to correct
miajor weaknesses in the aforesaid internal control procedures.

{v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us,
the company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the
meaning of Section 73 to 76 and any other relevant provisions of the Act and
the rules framed there under. As per the information and explanations given
to us no order has been passed by the Company Law Board or National
Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other
Tribunal against the company.

(wi) We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the
company pursuant to the rules made by the central government for the
maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act.
However we have not made a detailed examination of the cost records with
a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii) (a) According to the Information and explanations given to us and the records of
the company examined by us, in our opinion, the company has generally
been regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, employee's state insurance, income-tax,
sales-tax, wealth-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value
added tax, cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to it. There
were no arrears of such dues at the yearend which have remain outstanding
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b} The dues outstanding in respect of income tax on account of any dispute,
are as follows:




MName of Statues

MNature of
Dues

Assessment |
year to
which the
matter
pertains

Farums where
dispute is pending

Amount
Outstanding

e

| Income Tax Act, 1961

Income Tax

2007-08

Income Tax

Appellate Tribunal, |

3 Mew Delhi

5,86,95,087/-

Income Tax Act, 1961

Income Tax

2009-10

Income Tax
Appellate Tribunal,
New Delhi

2.09,36,576/- |

income Tax Act, 1961

Income Tax

2008-09

Appeal  filed by
department,
dismissed by CIT [A).
Department has
further option o
appeal at Income Tax
Appellate Tribunal,
New Delhi.

2.46,33,052/-

Income Tax Act, 1961

Income Tax

2010-11

Appeal  filed by
department,
dismissed by CIT (A).
Department has
further option to
appeal at Income Tax
Appellate Tribunal,
New Deilbi,

2,47,59,210/-

| Income Tax Act, 1961

Income Tax

2011-12

Income Tax Act, 1961

Income Tax

2012-13

Appeal  filed
department,
dismissed by CIT (A).
Department has
further option to
appeal at Income Tax
Appellate Tribunal,
New Delhi.
Appeal  filed
department,
dismissed by CIT [A).
Department has
further option to
appeal at Income Tax
Appellate Trithunal,
New Delhi.

by

by

2,64,30,300/- |

“Smasras

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on
documents and records examined by us, the company is not required to

transfer any amount :
,- Lot

w

stor Education and Protection Fund in



{wiii)

(i)

(x)

{xi)

[xii)

accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and rules made
there under.

The company has no accumulated losses as at 31.03.2015 and.it has not
incurred any cash losses in the financial year ended on that date or in the
immediately preceding financial year.

Based on the examination of the books of account and related records and
according to the information and explanations given to us, we are of the
opinion that the company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to any
financial institutions or banks.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
not granted any loans and advances on the basis of security by way of
pledge of shares, debentures and other securities.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the term loans have been applied for the purpose for which they were
raised.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the
company, carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing
practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given
to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud on or by the
company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed
of such case by the management.

For PRA and Co.

Place: New Delhi Partner

Date: 31.08.2015 Membership No. : 072416



Tulip Infratech Private Limited

Balance Sheet as at 31st March , 2015
CIN: U70101DL2005PTC144086

Hote NMos 1 to 34 Form an Integrall
part of these Flnancial Statements

Note As at 31 March, Az at 31 March,
Particulars No 2015 2014
¥ {In ) {In %)
. |EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1|Shareholders’ funds
(8} Share capital 2 20,00,00,000.00 20,00,00.000.00
{b] Reserves and surplus 3 700540014 93 713,84,56,794.92
Z|{Non-current Habilities
{a) Long-term borrowings 4 48,23 487 .37 39,28.908.57
{b) Other Long-term liabllities 5 60,76,19,873.30 51,06,65,356.20
3|Current liabllities
ial Trade payables 12,7972 542 .50 10,24,50,135.15
{b) Other current liabllities 6 1.44,92.79.850.19 | 1,36,10,93,793.94
{c) Shorr-term provisions 7 3,78,22,895.00 4,93,59.737.00
TOTAL| 5,21,50.68,563.28 | 2,96,59,54,725.88
. |ASSETS
Mon-current assets
1lia) Fixed assets
{i Tangible assets B 6, 78.77,759.00 £.40,00,918,00
il Intangible asseis 8.49.8%3.00 12.60,230.00
{b) lnvestments 9 26,99.99,395.00 -
{c) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 10 58.06.866.00 17.94,409.00
(d} Long-termyloans and advances 11 50,11.01.919.42 53,08.22,776.42
fe} Other mon-current ascets 12 45.01.34,034.35 29.61.17.522.35
2{Current assets
(al Inventories 13 14974 80,179.78 | 1.59.27.91.231.87
(b} Trade Recelvables 14 9,33.64,834 .66 1.91.70,271.95
[c} Cash and cash eguivalents 15 23.05.72.478.16 31,68,39.867.39
{d) Short-term loans and advances 15 10,08 70,603.91 12,31,57.498.90
TOTAL] 3,21,80,68,563.28 | 2,9659.54,
summary of significant accounting)
policies 1

At per our Seperate Report of even date

For PRA & CO,

Chartered A

For and on behalf of the Board of directors of
Tulip Infratech Private Limited

{Arvind L {Pa Jaln) {Vipin Jain)
Partner Sk Director Diractor
M.ND : 072416 DIN: 00142181 DiIN: 00052522
Place - New Delhi ({ nlajul

Date : 31/08/2015 Vice President Cum Company Secretary



Tulip Infratech Private Limited
Profit and Loss statement for the year ended 31st March, 2015
CIN: U70101DL2005PTC144086

Note As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
Particulars N 2015 2014
o {In %) {in %)
|, |Revenue from operations 7 1,50,42,00.000.00 2.38.38,00,000.00
I, |Other Income 18 11,37,12,643.71 12.42,79.690.99
Il |Total Revenue (| + |1} 1,61,79,12.643.71 2,50,80,79,680.99 |
Expenses:
Real estate project expenditure 1,38.15.22,699.76 2,15.69,14,395.80
Employee benefits expense 19 7.87.95,.468.00 8.26.,85,117.00
Finance costs 20 10,73.364.50 7.55,956.72
Depreciation and amortization
BXPENSE 1.68.65.957.00 99.20,597.00
Other expensas 21 5.28.25.023.36 544,35 742.67
IV. |Total expenses 1,53,10,86,512.71 2,30,47,11,809.19
v, |Profit Before Tax and prior period 8,68.26,131.00 20,33,67,881 80
items (I1-1V)
Wi, |Tax Expense
1) Current tax 3.54.06,896.00 4,74,54,742.00
{2} Mat eredit entitlernent 27.62.369.00 2,27.77.000.00
{3) Deferred tax (40.12.457.00) (11.63.257.00)
Vil. |Profit after tax but before prior 5,26,69,323.00 13,42.99,396.80
period items(y -V1)
Vil |Prior period expenses 22 2,00,000.00
1%, |Net profit for the year 5.24,69,323.00 13,42,99,396 .80
Ezrnings per equity share: 23
[1) Basic .63 871
{7} Diluted 2.63 6.71
Summany of significant] ,
accounting policies
MWote Mos 1 to 34 Form an integral
part of these Financial
Statements
A5 per pur Seperate Report of even date
For PRA & CO. e = For and on behalf of the Board of directors o
Chartered Accountafifs & Crin, Tullp Infratech Private Limited
FAM: D1T903N L * e
w DEUAY | & "":':’,7’
LOATIREN § 2= *
{Arvind ",":s'-' P Jain) {Vipin Jain}
Partner 4 Director Director

M.ND 0724168

Place ; New Delhi
Date : 31082015

DiN: amazmwﬂnz
{Pawan Jaju)

Vice President Cum Company Secretary



AE at 31 Math, A% 3t 31 March,
[ T8 T s w4
lin ) ey Y
Sutherized Sheee Capital
500,00, 00D Equcy Shares of FLO sacn 1) D&am.w !ﬂ.u&g EE
issued & Subscribed Share Caoital .
300, 00,000 Equity Shenes of FiQ sach 10, 00.00. 00000 000,060, 000 0
[0, 50,00, 005 0% | 30,90.50,500.00
Paictus Share Cagital
200,00, 000 Equity Shasnwi of 10 sach 260.00.00, 000,00 30.00,00,000.00
T R

NOTEQ]

Reconcilation of number of eQuity SRATES DUEFTANEING AT the beginning and at the end of the year,

Shanes in the company held by sach shareholder halding more than 3% thares.

Mete: 4.1 Pupee term lpan from Banks
Gk

A3 81 Y1 Manch, 1013 A5 at 31 March, 3014
58 MO Name of Shanshoider
No. of Shares held % of Hokding HHMMH[ % of Holdirg
] Aanicon Frivate Lomited e | LR FA00L00 R
7 ST R ] e i o S
ROTE 3
Pagarved L Surpiug
Az k31 March, A3 at 31 March,
Fardicdan s 014
LLE | LR 4]
Eelarce T384.56, T 97 GO4LST. D1
+} et Profiies Loss) for the Carent pear 5346932200 | 13429939600
|=|- Adjustmant due 10 Dapreciatien [ROTE 320 I3, e 203 00) '
HOTE &
LAy LErm Borrowings [ Cument Maturiies Hon-Caurrent Poran
A5 Bt 31 Mairch, Az st 31 Manch, Az wt 31 March, AE AT J1 March.
Earmouiary Fi 201% 054
nn fin'E) {im £} Ihn
|Fugured
Fupen Tarm Loan from Banics [Ses toks 4.1)
1) HOFC Bank Linited hEL 33811 42 FAABT AT FH20.208 57
2l 5.1 A48 -1 A B 14

Term Lesn from HORC Bgok incigdey
(m} Loan tskan for Anancing stquisticn of féc - Porpche sgamst the hypothacston of e same. Th loam Cared an inferest rate of B 75%0.0 00

& monthiy reducing Dasis and it is repesd in 3B inatadmangs aarted from O5En Aug. 2003 and the kst instalim et cus e 0S8R july, 20040,

ib} Loan teken for Anancing soguinitian of car - [aguar sgainst the hypathecation of e sieme. Tha Ican caties an interest rate of B.85%0.8.0n 2

ERnthly reduting bass and & is repald in 38 installments saned from OT1h jure. 2004 and the last irstalment due on 07 july, 7017
[Hote - There (3 no default, continuing or ctherwise. as st badsnce sheet date. in resayment of any of the Bbove loans @nd kterest on them.,

NOTE §
Hallithey
. A3 ot 31 March, A5 At 31 March,
Eaeiiculans 2013 s
fin'E} {in ¥}
Prozect Dewwl Dprant wepan s $7.62.37 BERDD 46,90 58, 868.00
SECurily Depaiiy ENERFN S A_19. 78,488, 30

LS A0



NOTE 6
Other current liabilities
As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
Particulars 2015 2014
{nT) (In %)
Curent maturities of Lang-term debt {Rafer
Note 4} 58,17 ,803.90 26,61, 338.11
calaries. wages & incentivés payable 1.92,03,290.00 1.39,19.798.00
Statutory labilities ;
Pf payable 9.03,202.00 4,54,014.00
ESI payable 8,186.00 11,510.00
Duties and taxes payable 25,20,142.00 33,57,568 00
Audit fee payable 3,58, 260.00 3,15,000.00
Advances received against Project 1,01,54,05,412.28| 1.32,95.99,147.83
Expenses Payable 1,36,70.554.00 1,07,75,018.00
Refundatie Reglistration Money Recelved 34,13.92,000.00 -

|erovision for inpome-tak

Tokal 1,44 927 .19 E!iﬁ Elll ?ﬂlﬂ
NOTE 7
Short term provisons
As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
Particulars 2015 2014
{InT) {in®)
Provision for Employee Benefits 24,15,995.00 15,04.995.00

3,54,06,896.00 4.74.54,742.00

Total 7 .00 glﬂé'ﬂlii!?,gg
ROTE S
Investments
As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
Particulars 2015 2014
{In TH {in T

Investment in Mutual Fund
Investment in Shares

25,00,00,000.00
1,99,55.995.00 =

Total §9.095.00 -
NOTE 10
Deferred tax Assests (Net)
Az at 31 March, As at 31 March,
Particulars 2015 2014
{In T} [in )
Deaferred Tax Assats
On account of Timing difference In:
{a) Depreciation and amartisation 58,06.866.00 17,94,408.00

Deferred tax Assels (Net]

S8,06,866,00 | 17,04,400.00

FRM-01TSIN

HEW DELHIY



NOTE 11
Long term loans and advances

As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
Barticulars 1015 2014
{in ) [inT)
(1} Fayments made under agreement
ta purchase land/development rights. 28,05 72,15442 | 371067882 42
fisy security Deposits
Project Sacurity Depasit 19.12,48,100.00 | 23.16,68,150.00
Other Saclrity Depodit 2,55 60,000.00 254, 40,000.00
{ili}Balance with government
Pradagosit of IT Demand{ay 2005 15.00.000.00 25,00,000.00
() Other advandes
Prapaid Bank Gurantes charges 13.71.665.00 145, T44.00
, | LU TTE AT |
Total 5 FrR
MOTE 12
Other non- CIMTent assets
As at 31 March, Az at 31 March,
Barticulars 2015 2014
(in%) {in )

Mon- current Bank balancess | Ratar

45,01.34.034 35

49.61,17.522.35

Total A5,01,30,004.35 | 408117500395 |
MOTE 13
Inventories
As a8t 31 March, As at 31 March,
Pardiculars 2015 04
(in T {in®

Land, piots and construction work-in-
progress

1.49.74,90,179.78

LA927.91,221 87

W

NEW DELH |
FRM f]‘.?'!ﬂ"‘??

2 h&
1/-\{;-“\‘&-:

TOTAL TA0, 7400 170.78 | TS0 TP S ITTEY |
HOTE 14
Trade Receivables
As ak 31 March, As at 31 March,
Particulars 2015 2014
(InT) {inT)
Trade ReCelvablas outstandmg 033,64, 034.66 1.50,70,27L.95
Unsecured, conskdéred good
TOTAL LN 1.91,??&?1_9-5
NOTE 15
Cash and Cash equivalents MNon- current Current:
As at 31 March, As at 31 March, A at 31 March, As at 31 March,
Particulars 2015 2014 2015 2014
finT {in T} (541 {in T
. Balances with banks
I gurrent acoomnts - 23.83,05,142.16 30,56.75,941.8%
b Cash on hand - 22.67.336.00 1.11,63,925.50
¢. Dther Bank balantes
Dieposits with more than 12 manths A5,01.34.034.35 28.61.17.522.35
maturity
Tatal 95 0L 30.038.35 | 79611732235 | 15051297016 J1.6B, 30,667 .39




NOTE 16
Short<term Icans and advances

Ag at 31 March, As at 31 March,
Particulars 2015 2014
[in T} in %)
Unsegured, considersd good
|2} Balances with government authorities :
|1} Tax deducted at source 1,06.17 838.00 74.27.138.00
(i} Advance Income tax 2.20.00.000.00 3,50,00,000.00
(i) MAT Cradit Entitlement - 271,62.369.00
b} Other loans and advances :
i1} Advances to SuppliersiContratons 5.65,08.123.91 $.79.24.013.90
i1l) Prepald Expenses 18,37.847.00 7.52,739.00
(i) Service Tox Credit 11,57.232.00 4.85,540.00
{iwiPrepaid Bank Gurantee charges 31,099,583 00 28.44,390 00
v Cthar Advances recoverable in 55.50,000.00 59.50,00:0,.00
cash or kingd
Totsl 10.08.70.603.91 | 12 31.57,4598.90




NOTE 16
Short-term loans and advances

As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
Barticulars 2015 2014
(tn T} In%)
Unsequred, considered good
a) Balances with government authorities :
11y Tax deducted ak source 1,06.17,838.00 74,27,138.00
(i} Advance income tax 2.20.00,000:00 3,50,00.000.00
(i) MAT Credit Entitlement - 27,68,369.00
b} Other loans and advances :
{1} Advances to SuppliersiContrators 5.65,08.123.91 $.70,24.013.90
{1} Prepaid Expenses 18,37,847.00 7.52,739.00
{ili} Service Tox Credit 11,57.232.00 4.85540.00
{iwiPrepeid Bank Gurantae chamges 31,99 56300 28.44,390 00
{v) Cther Advances recoverabls in 55.50,000.00 59,530,000, 00
cash or king
Total 10.08.70.603.91 | 12,31.57.498.90

NEW DELMI
FRN-01 23N




NOTE 17
Revenue from Qperations

Particulars

As at 31 March,
2015
{in T)

Az at 31 March,
2014
{inT)

Revenue Aecognised on Real Estate
Projects

1,50.42,00,000.00

2.38,38,00,000.00

Total 1,50,42.00,000.00 | 2.38,38.00,000.00
MOTE 18
Other Income
A5 at 31 March, As at 31 March,
Particulars 2015 2014
{1k 1] {in )
Interest income from
Bank Deposits 504,64 865.00 3,19,30,467.00
Customers 1.81.01.973.18 3.76,25,160.20
Other Incoma
Other Non-Cperating income 3,61,45,805.52 5,47,24,063.79
Total 11,37,12.643.71 12,42,79,690.99
MOTE 19

Employee benefits expenses

Particulars

As at 31 March,
2015
(In%)

As at 31 March,
2014
{in T}

Salaries, wages and incentives

7,67,40.376.00

§,02,81.259.00

Contributions to -

Provident fund 8,27,059.00 1,78,482.00
ES| 78,323.00 40.132.00
Gratuity Pald 97,212.00 2.41,327.00
Staff welfare expenses 10,52 498.00 19.43,917.00
Total 7,87,95,468.00 B.26,85,117.00
NOTE 20
Finance costs
As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
*Particulars 2015 2014
{InT) {in®)
Interest expense 10.73,364.58 7.55.956.72
Total 10,73,364.59 7.55,956.72




NOTE 21

Cther axpenses
Az at 31 March, As at 31 March,
Particulars 2015 2014
{in7) (InT)
Advertisement & Business Promotion 54,89,349.62 33,10, 322.65
Accounting Charges 1,00.000.00 1.60,000.00
Bank Charges 2,41.905.45 31.51.551.00
Computer Expanses 2,69,364.00 3,02,831.00
Office Maintenance 5.57.936.00 86,68,000.00
Wehicle Maintenance 11,32,451.00 18 06,820.00
Other Repairs & Maintenance 3,88 480.00 7.37.567.00
|Fareign Exchange Difference 1.03,594.00 (6,92.316.00)
Penalties and tax demands 2,34,320.00 5,11,326.00
Printing and Stationery 14,12,495.00 18,17.400.00
Insurance 10.18.582.00 6.07.813.00
Interest on Taxes 9.73,346.00 1.24.982.00
Denatlons and charity = 47 66,799.00 5.25,000.00
Audit Fees 3,50,000.00 9,00,000.00
Power, Fuel & Water 44,01,176.00 33,40,120.00
Legal & Professional Fees 30,08,520.00 28,97,515.00
Talephone & Internel Charges 9,48,125.00 9,25,042.87
Travelling & Conveayance 89,34, 352.00 B3,25,494.00
Ciffice Rent 1,20,36,750.00 1.00,32,000.00
Securily Expances 19,39,230.00 18.21,214.00
|Miscellanecus Expenses 17,55.533.20 37,468,178 15
Lass on disposal of Fixed Assets 17.62.715.00 20,74.682.00
Takal 5,28,25,023.36 5.44,35,742.67
*|rclude corporate social resposibility expenses
MNOTE 22
Prior Perlod Expenses
As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
Particulars 2015 2014
{in ¥} [in¥)
Income Tax Paid 2,00,000.00
Tokal ;IDG.DW.W =
NOTE 23
Eaming Per Share
Basic Earning Per Share 2014-15 2013-14
Welghted average number of shares 2,00,00,000.00 2,00,00,000.00
considered for cakculation of EPS
Met Profit after tax [T) 5.24,69.323.00 13,42, 99,395,800
Basic Earning Per Share (1) 2.52 5.71
Face Value Per Shara (¥) 10.00 18.00
Dliuted Eaming Per Share 2014-15 2013-14
‘Weighted average number of shares 2.00,00,000.00 2,00,00, 000.00
considered for calculation of EPS
Het Profit after tax (7] 5,24.69,323.00 13.42,99,396.80
Diluted Earning Per Share (7] .62 6.71

face Value Per Share (T}

10.00




NOTE 24
Related party disclosures
{as per AS- 18 "Related Party Disclosures" as specified under Section 133 of the

Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companles (Accounts) Rules, 2014
{as amended) (refer annexuara -A))

MNOTE 25
Balances of some of the sundry debtors, sundry creditors, advances given,

advances recelved are subject to reconciliation and confirmation from respective
parties. The balance of the said sundry debtors, sundry creditors, and advances
glven and recelved are taken as shown by the books of accounts, The ultimate
outcome of such reconciliation and confirmation cannot be determined presently.
Therefore, no provision for any lisbility that may result out of such reconciliation
and confirmation has been made in the financial statement, the financial impact
of which is unascertainable, due to the reason as above stated.

NOTE 26

in the opinion of the Board of Directors and to the best of thelr knowledge and
belief, all Current assets, |oans and advances have a value on realization which in
the ordinary course of the business would not be less than the amount at which
they are stated in the balance sheet and the provisions for all known and
determined liabilities are adequate and not in excess of the amount reasonably
required.

NOTE 27

Contingent Liabilities :

As on 31st March, 2015, there stands a contingent llability amounting to ¥ 850
lacs towards Oriental bank of Commerce and T 3170 lacs towards Punjab National
Bank on account of Guarantees given by them to Director, Tours & Country
Planning, Chandigarh towards Internal & External Development charges related to

various projects undertaken by the company.

NOTE 28
The Company is primarily engaged in the business of real estate development,

which as per Accounting Standard - 17 on "Segment Reporting” notified pursuant
to the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 issued by the Central
Government in exercise of the powers conferred under sub-section (1){a) of
Section 642 of the Companies Act, 1956 is considered to be the only reportable
business segment. The Company is primarily operating in India which Is
considered as a single geographical segment.




NOTE 29
As per Accounting Standard 15 " Employee Benefits®, the disclosures as

defined in the Accounting standard are given below:

Defined Contribution Plans

2014-15 2013-14
Eunn'rglﬂyrer s Contribution to provident 54.12.476.00 31,01,306.00
Employer's Contribution to ESI 78,323.00 -
Leave Encashment

Provision for the leave encashment in respect of unavailed leaves standing to
the credit of employees |s made on accrual basis. The Company does not
maintain any fund to pay for leave encashment.

NOTE 30
Expenditure in foreign currency

As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
Particulars 2015 2014
(In%) (In%)
Others 1,75.52.714.00 1,07,13,401.00
Total 1,75.52,714.00 1,07,13,401.00

NOTE 31

Income tax Matters

During the year ended 31st March, 2015, the company received an assessment
order for AY. 2012-13 from the Income Tax Authorities, creating a demand of T
2,83,97 480/- on account of disallowance of deduction Ufs 80-1B of the Income
Tax Act,1961.

The Company filed appeal before the CIT (Appeals) against the said
assessment order. Based on the cliams made, evidences provided and cases
referred befor the CIT (Appeals) by the independent legal counsel , the Hon'ble
CIT{A) decided the appeal In favour of the company. Accardingly no provision

has been made |n these financial statments,

NOTE 32
Adjustment as per Schedule Il of Companies Act, 2013

In accordance with the requirements of Schedule |l to the Companies Act,
2013, the Company has re-assessed the useful lves of the depreciable assets,
The depreciation for the year ended March 31, 2014 of the assets whose
remaining useful life is nil as at April 1, 2014 is higher by T 3,76,203/. This has
been adjusted in the closing balance of Reserves & Surplus as at March 31,
2015.




MOTE 33
Corporate Soclal Responsibllity expenses

a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year is T
42, 74,6771
b} Amount spent during the year is T 46,86,899/.

NOTE 34
Previous years figures have been regroupedjrecast, whereever considered

necessary to make them comparable with those of current years

As per our Seperate Report of even date

For PRA & CO. : - = For and on behalf of the Board of directors of
Chartered Accountamt G : Tullp Infratech Private Limited
FRN: D17903N - :

F e e
(Arvind Kumar Guife 4 { Jain) {(Vipin jain}
Partner = Director Director
M.NO : 072416 DiIN: 00142181 - DIN: 00052522

%

Place : New Delhi (Pawan Jaju)

Date ; 31/08/2015 Vice President Cum Company Secretary



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To,
The Members of,
TULIP INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of M/s TULIP INFRATECH
PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st
March, 2016, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year
then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatury information

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of
these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014, This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Stancards on Auditing specified
under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with

401, Mohan Tower, 1-Commercial Complex, Wazirpur, Dethi-110052 « Tei.: 011-45132005, 27374125 » Fax: 011-45132006
H.0.: 1279, Urban Estate Jind (Haryana)



ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and the disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to
the Company's preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the
Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31st March, 2016, and Profit and its Cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1, As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”),
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section
143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure 1, a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable,

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:
{a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our

audit,

{b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.



{c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account.

{d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
31st March, 2016 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2016 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2} of the Act. -

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in Annexure 2 to this report;

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. As detailed in note 31, the Company has disclosed the impact of pending
litigations.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For PRA and Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: D17803N

Arvind Kumar Gupta
Partner
Membership No. : 072416
Place: New Delhi
Date: 01.09.2016



AN RE 1 TO THE INDEPEND DITORS' T

R in par -1 undert adin o Other
Regulatory R ts” of our of even date.

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and according to the
information and explanations given to us during the course of our audit, we report
that:-

(i} a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including

quantitative details and situation of fixed assets. ‘

b) As explained to us the Company has a phased program of physical verification

of its fixed assets which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size

of the Company and the nature of its assets. The management during the year

has physically verified all fixed assets and no material discrepancy were
noticed on such verification.

¢) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the
title deeds of immovable properties included in fixed assets are held in the
name of Company,

(i) The management has physically verified the inventory during the year. In our
opinion the frequency of such verification is reasonable.

(iii} (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms and other parties covered in the register maintained under
Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(b) Since there are no such loans, the comments regarding terms and conditions,
repayment of the principal amount & interest thereon and overdue amount
are not required.

(iv) in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has not advanced any loans to persons covered under the
provisions of Section 185 or granted securities under Section 186 of the Act.



v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us,
the company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the
meaning of Section 73 to 76 and any other relevant provisions of the Act and
the rules framed there under. As per the information and explanations given
to us no order has been passed by the Company Law Board or National
Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other

Tribunal against the company.

(vi)

-

a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

{vii) {a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of
the company examined by us, in our opinion, the company has generally
been regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, employee's state insurance, income-tax,
sales-tax, wealth-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value
added tax, cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to it. There
were no arrears of such dues at the yearend which have remain outstanding

We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the
company pursuant to the rules made by the central government for the
maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act.
However we have not made a detailed examination of the tost records with

for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) The dues outstanding in respect of income tax on account of any dispute are

as follows:
Name of Statues Mature of | Assessment Forums where Amount
Dues year to dispute is pending Outstanding
which the
matter
pertains
income Tax Act, 1961 | Income Tax 2007-08 Appeal filed by | 5,86,96,087/-
company,
Allowed by ITAT
{Delhi).
Department has
further option to
appeal at High Court.
Income Tax Act, 1961 | Income Tax 2008-10 Appeal filed by | 2,09,36,576/-
cﬁ-mpanv,
Allowed by ITAT
{Delhi).
Department has
further option to

appeal at High Court.




income Tax Act, 1961 | Income Tax 2008-09 Income Tax 2,46,33,052/-
Appellate Tribunal,
MNew Delhi
Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 2010-11 Income Tax 2,47,59,210/-
Appellate Tribunal,
New Delhi
Income Tax Act, 1961 | Income Tax 2011-12 Income Tax 2,64,30,300/-
Appellate Tribunal,
- New Delhi
| Income Tax Act, 1961 | Income Tax 2012-13 Income Tax 2,83,97,480/-
Appellate Tribunal,
New Delhi
Income Tax Act, 1961 | Income Tax 2013-14 CIT (A) Income Tax, | 558,44,860/-
New Delhi. :
VAT Act Haryana VAT 2009-10 | Punjab & Haryana, | 8,41,45.850/-
Department High Court
VAT Act Haryana VAT 2010-11 | Punjab & Haryana, | 15,13,57,824/-
Department High Court
VAT Act Haryana VAT 2012-13 Joint Excise | 23,31,90,072/-
Department ETaxation
Commissioner
({Appeals)
VAT Act Haryana VAT |  2013-14 | Joint Excise | 25,02,81,090/-
Department B.Taxation
Commissioner
(Appeals)

{wiii)

(ix)

{x)

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the
documents and records produced to us, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of borrowings to banks. The Company does not have any loans or
borrowings from financial institutions, government or debenture holders.

The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or
further public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans during the
year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of the Order is not applicable.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the
company, carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing
practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given
to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud on or by the
company, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed
of such case by the management.




(i) According to the information and explanations given by the management,
the managerial remuneration has been paid / provided in accordance with
the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 137 read with

Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi Company. Therefore, the
provisions of clause 3{xii) of the order are not applicable to the Company

and hence not commented upen.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given by the management,
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and
188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the

applicable accounting standards.

[xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the balance sheet, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting
requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to the Company and,

not commented upon.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given by the management,
the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with him as referred to in Section 192 of Companies

Act, 2013.

{wwi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of
Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to

the Company.

Place: New Delhi
Date: 01.09.2016

For PRA and Co.
Chartered Accountants

FRM: 017903N

Arvind Kumar Gupta
Partner
Membership No. : 072416



ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Referred to i ragraph — 2(f] under the hea M on Other Legal
nd Regulatory Re nts" of our Re

-

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
TULIP INFRATECH PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2016 in
conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the,
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’'s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI}. These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial
controls over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by
ICAlI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to
an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAl. Those
Standards and the Guidance MNote require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.



Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and
their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal
financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s
internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authaorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the
risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.



Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31,
2016, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the “Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”.

For PRA and Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 017903N

Arvind Kumar Gupta
Place: New Delhi Partner
Date: 01.09.2016 Membership No. : 072416



Tulip Infratech Private Limited

Balance Sheet as at 31st March , 2016
CIN: UT0101DLZ005PTCL44088

Mets As at 31 March, Asg at 31 March,
Particulars Ne. 2016 2015
{in T} {inT)
I |EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1|Shareholders’ funds -
(a) Share capital 2 20,00,00,000.00 20,00,00,000.00
(b} Reserves and surplus 3 83,51,42,053.00 79,05,49,915.00
2| Non-current llabllities
(@) Long-term bofmowings q 34,04,701.00 48,73,487.00
(k) Other Long-term liabiltles 5 37.42,68,457.00 60,76,19,873.00
3|Current llabiiities
{a) Trade payables 28.48,80,539.00 12,79,72,543.00
(b) Other current liabilities 6 1,25,65,90,667.00 | 1.44,92,79,850.00
(c} Short-term provisions T 2,52,76,443.00 3,78,22,895,00
TOTAL [2.97,95,62,860,00 | 3,21, 563,00
. |ASSETS
Non-current assets
ilia) Fixed assets
1] Tangible assels 8 5.56,65,136.00 6.78,77.759.00
(i) intangible assets 5,59,481.00 8,49 B03 00
(B} Investments 9 1.99,99,995,00 26,99,99,995.00
(c] Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 10 79.87,169.00 58,06, 866.00
(d) Long-term loans and advances 11 50.95,96,747.00 50.66,51,219.00
(e} Other nor-curent assets 12 18,32,85,749.00 45,01,34.034.00
2|Current assets
[a) [Inwentories 13 1,85,25,00,010.00 1,49,74,90.180.00
ib) Trade Receivables 14 1.65.42.532.00 9.33,64,835.00
fcl  Cash and cash equivalents 15 11,92.41,261.00 23,05,72,478.00
(dl Short-term loans and advances 18 11.41,84,790.00 9,53,20,604,.00
TOTAL [2,97.95,62,660.00 | ,B0,68,
Summary of significant accounting|
policies 1
Note Nos 1 to 33 Form an Integral part
of these Financlal Statements

As per our Seperate Raport of even date
For PRA & CO o

MG 072416

Place | New Delhi

pate : P4-9§ 34l b

For and on behalf of the Board of directors of
Tulip infratech Private Limited

—

{ Jain) [(Vipin Jain)
Director Director
DIN: 00142181 DIN: 00052522

(Pawan Jaju)
Vice President Cum Company Secretany




Tulip Infratech Private Limited
Profit and Loss statement for the year ended 31st March, 2016

CIN: UT01010L2005PTC 144066
Nore | s at 31 March, | As 5t 31 March,
Particulars No. 2016 2018
) {in T) {in ¥}
L |mevee soin operations 17 5,44,76,424.00 |  1,50,42,00,000.00
1. |other income 18 8059832200  11,37.12.644.00

. |Total Revenue (i + 11
Expenses:

Real estate project expenditure
Emiployea benafits expense
Finance costs

Depreciation and amortization expense
Other axpensas

V. |Total expenses

Profit Before Tax and prior perlod items

Ve lomvy

Vi, [Tax Expense
{1} Current tax
{2) Mat credit entithernent
(3) Deferred tax

il Profit after tax but before prior period

 |itemsiV )
VI, |Prior pariod expanses

I¥, |Met profit for the year

Eamings per equlty share:
(1) Basic
(2] Diluted

Surmmary
policies

of significant accounting

Nete Nos 1 to 33 Form an Integral part
of these Financial Statements

19
20

21

22

i3

93,50,74.746.00

1,61,79,12,644.00

76,5449 83900

1.38,15,22,700.00-

5.21.28,667.00 7.87,95,468.00
B.61,447.00 10,73,365.00
1,08.91,925.00 1,68,69,957.00
4,18.27.731.00 5,28.25.023.00
— 87,12,50,600.00 | 1,53.10,88,513.00
6,38,15,137.00 B,68,26.131.00
2.41,65,672.00 3.54,06.896.00
- 27.62,369.00

121.80.303.00) (40,12,457.00)
4,18,29,768.00 53,26.69,323.00
2,00,000.00

4.18.29,768.00 5.24,68.373.00
2.09 .62

2.09 2.62

A5 per our Seperate mﬂmnﬂam

{Arvind
Partner
M.NO ; 072416

Place : New Delni

bate - O)00 Wb

For and on behalf of the Board of directors «
Tulip Infratech Private Limited

juinI [Vipin Jain)
Director
DlH Qﬂllﬂﬂl Din: DOD52522
(Pawan [aju}

Wice President Cum Company Secretary



Notes to Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2016
NOTE 1: Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements:

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention and on accrual basis of accounting. The accounts of the
Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles, Accounting Standards as specified
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and relevant
guidance notes issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where
newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to
an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting
policies hitherto in use,

(b) Fixed Assets and Depreciation

Fixed Assets of the Company are stated at cost of acquisition less
accumulated depreciation. All costs, including financing costs till
commencement of commercial production, are capitalized.

Depreciation is provided on the basis of WDV method computed on the
basis of useful life prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act,
2013, on a pro-rata basis from the date the asset is ready to put to use
subject to adjustments arising out of transitional provisions of Schedule
Il to the Companies Act, 2013.

(c) Intangible assets and amortisation

Softwares which are not integral part of the hardware are classified as
intangibles and are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation.
These are being amortised over the estimated useful life of 5 years, as
determined by the management.

Cost of trademark is amortised over the period of 10 years, being the
estimated useful life as per the management estimates.



{d) Investments

Current investments are stated at lower of the cost and fair value.

(e) Revenue Recognition

Revenue (Work certified) from major projects of the Company ie.;
Project Grand at Kundli

Project Tulip Voilet at Gurgaon -

Project Petals & Ace at Gurgaon

Project White & Purple at Gurgaon

have been recognized in accordance with AS-7 “Construction
Contracts” read with AS-9 “Revenue Recognition”. Work certified in
respect of Projects has been recognized on the basis of Percentage
Completion method, the percentage being arrived at with reference to
the percentage of completion on the basis of physical inspection of the
entire project as certified by Professional valuer.

{Determination of revenues under Percentage of Completion method
necessarily involves making estimates by management for the purpose
percentage of completion, cost to completion, revenues expected from
projects, projected profits and foreseeable loss. These estimates, being
of technical nature, have been relied upon by the auditors.}

(f} Taxes on Income

Income Tax is accounted for in accordance with Accounting Standard
(AS-22) “Accounting for Taxes both Current Tax and Deferred Tax.
Provision for Current year ‘s Tax has been made at the amount
expected to be paid to the Income Tax authorities after considering
various allowances and deductions under the provisions of the Income
Tax Act, 1961 using the applicable rates. Deferred Tax assets and
liabilities are recognized for future tax consequence attributable to
timing differences between taxable income and accounting income
that is measured at relevant enacted tax rates. At each Balance Sheet
date, the Company would reassess its unrealized deferred tax assets,
to the extent they become reasonably certain or virtually certain of
realization, as the case may be.

Thus, Deferred Tax Asset has been calculated at ¥ 79,87,169/- on the
reporting date i.e., 31/03/2016.



(g) Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currency are accounted for at the exchange
rate prevailing on the date of the transaction. All monetary itemns
denominated in foreign currency are converted into Indian rupees at
the year-end exchange rate. The exchange differences arising on such
conversion and on settlement of the transactions are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.

(h) Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of the cash flow statement
comprise cash at bank and in hand. Cash flow statement is prepared
using the indirect method.

(i) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition/ construction of
qualifying assets are capitalized until the time all substantial activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying assets for their intended use are
complete. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use/ sale. All other
borrowing costs not eligible for capitalization are charged to statement
of profit and loss.

(j) Earning per share

Basic earning per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the period.



As at 31 March, A 8t 31 March,
Partcutars 2006 2015
[in T} i)

butherlsed Share Capita
5,00.00,000 Equity Shares of 110 each 00 | 50.00.00,000.00 |
50,00,90,000'00 | 50,000,000 00
lazued & Subsoribed Share Capal
|m.nn.m Equity Shares of 710 sach 00, 00,000.00 00.00,060.60
30,00,00.000 50 :ﬁﬂ'&m

200,00.000 Equity Shares of ¥10 each 20.00,00.000 00 20.00.00,000.00

YT £ 55| 305 0050000

HOTE 2.1
Reconcillation of number of equity shares outstanding st the beginning and at the end of the year,

Shares b the company held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares.

As all 31 Manth, 2016 Az at 31 March, 2015
SR NO Mame of Shareholder
Wo. of Shares held | %ol Holding  |Wo. of Shames held| % of Halding
1 Wlip Aealecn Private Liml 49 50% SH00B00 FIRTET
2 “ﬁl SEO0000 '?EEEJ
NOITE 3
Resarves & Surplus
As gt 31 March, Ag ot 31 March,
Earticulsrs 2018 s
{Inty {in )
Surplus
Opening balance TO.0540,615.00 | 73.54.56,795.00
{#} Adjustment due to MAT Credit 17,63,3710.00 3
{#] Net Profit/ Met Loss) for the current year 4,18,29.768,00 5.24,69,323.00
1) Adjustrment due to Depreclation - 3,76, 203.00)
Closing Baince MR
NOTE 4 = ~
Long term borrawings Current Maturities Mon-Current Portion
Asnt 3L March, | Asat 31 Masch, | As t 31 March, | As st 31 March,
Particidars 2016 2018 018 2015
fin 1) {pn T} {in T} {in 7}
Segured
Aupee Term Loam From Banks (See Kot 4.1
{6 HOFC Bank Limited 42,57 536.00 56,17,803.00 5.70,8%1.00 48,73,487.00
1] KUTAK Mahindra Bank 14,52,911.00 . 78.34.050.00 .
Total STOS VAV SEIYEONO0 | N404. 90000 | 483548700 |

Note: 4.1 Rupse term loan from Banics
(i Term Loan frpem HOFC Baok includes:

(8] Loan taken for Rnancing scquisition of car - Porsche against the hypothecation of the same. The loan carries an Interest rate
of 8.25%p.a an @ monthly reducing basis and It i5 repaid in 36 insaliments stared from 05th &g, 2013 and the last instaliment
duse ait OF5Lh Juby 2016,

(b} Loan taken for financing acguisition of car - |aguar against the hypothecation of the same. The loan carries an interest rate of
5.65%0.8 on @ monthly reducing basis and it is repaid in 36 instalimants started from 07t June 20014 and the last instalment
dise on OTEH july 2017,

(i) Term Loan from ROTAR Sank ncludes:

(8] Loan taken for financing acquisition of car - Land Rover against the hypothecatian of the same The lcan carries an interest
rate of §.75%p.8 on & manthly reducing basis and it is repaid in 38 instalimants started from 1St jan, 2006 and the lass
instaliment due on 315t Dec. 2018,

{Mate = There s na default. continuing or obtherwise, as at balance sheet date, in repayment of any of the above loans nd
Inkerest on them. )

NEW DELH}

FiN-OTTo0IN | £




NOTE 5
Other Long-term liabilities

As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
Particulars 2016 2015
{In¥) {in %)
Project Development expenses 34,73,00,000.00 57,62,27,868.00
Security Deposits 2,69,68,457.00 3,13,92.005.00
Total “37.42,68.457.00 60,76,19,873.00
NOTE 6

Other current liahilities

#As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
riicul 2016 2015
{(in¥) {in %)
Current maturities of Long-term debt (Refer
Nate 4) 57.05,747.00 58,17,803.00
Salaries, wages & incentives payable 49.42.063.00 1,592.03,290.00
Statutory llabilities
PF payable 6,55,772.00 9,03,202.00
ESi payable 2.03,291.00 9,186.00
Dutles and taxes payable 24,49,146.00 25,20,142.00
Audit fee payable 3,65,750.00 3,58,260.00

Advances received against Project
Expenses Payable
Registration Money Received

1,12,58,13.306.00
2,57,81,192.00

9,06,74.400.00

1.01,54,05,413.00
1,36,70,554.00
39,13,92,000.00

Land Cost payable -
Total 1,25,65,90,667. 1,44,52,75,850.00
NOTE 7
Short term provisions
As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
Particulars 2016 2015
{in T) {in®)
Provision for Employee Benefits 11,10,771.00 24,15,993.00

Provision for income-tax

2,41,65,672.00

3,54,06,896.00

Total IIEZETEiHlM BITBEIEIHE.M _
NOTE 9
Investments
As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
Particulars 2016 2015
(In %) {InT)

Investment in Mutual Fund - 25,00,00,000.00
Investment in Shares 1,99,99,995.00 1,99,99,995.00

Total

1,99,89,395.00

26,99,95,995.00




NOTE 10

Deferred tax Assests (Net}
As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
Particulars 2016 2015
{bn T} {in T)
|Deterred Tax Assets
On account of Timing difference in;
(a) Depreciation and amortisation 79,87,169.00 58,06,866.00
Deferred tax Assets (Net) 79.87,169.00 58 6.
NOTE 11 e
Long term joans and advances
As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
Barticulars 2018 2015
{in 7} {in ¥}

{I} Payments made under agreement to
purchase land/development rights and govt
fees.

28,33.35.215.00

28,05,22.154.00

{iiy Security Deposits
Project Security Deposit 19,12, 48.100.00 19,12.48,100.00
Other Security Deposit 2,58,25,000.00 2,55.60,000.00
(ill) Balance with government authoritlies
Predeposit of IT Demand{AY 2008-10) 25,00,000.00 25,00,000.00
(W] Other advances
Prepaid Bank Gurantee charges 10,38,432.00 12,71,665 00
Cther Advances 56,50.000.00 55.50,000.00
Tatal 50,95,96,747.00 | 50,66,51,910,00
NOTE 12
Other non- current assets
Ag at 31 March, As at 31 March,
Particulars 2016 2015
{in T) [in T}

unsecyred, considerad good
Non- current Bank balances | Refer Mote- 15)

28,32.85.749.00

45.01,34.034.00

Total 28,32,85,749.00 | 45,01,34,034.00 |
NOTE 13
Inventories
A5 at 31 March, As ot 31 March,
Particulars 2016 2015
in®) (nT)
Land, plots and construction work-in-progress 1.85,25,00.000,00 | 1,49,74.90,180.00
TOTAL 1,85,25,00,010,00 | 1,49,74,90,180.00 |
NOTE 14
Trade Recelvables
As at 31 March, As at 31 Marth,
2016 2015
{inT) Nt
1854252200 .33.68,835.00

1,65.42.522.00




KOTE 15

Cash and Cash eguivalents HNon- curment Current
As at 31 March, As at 31 March, As at 31 March, As ot 31 March,
Particulars 2016 2015 2016 2015
{In ) [In®} {In T} {in%}
(3. Balances with Danks
In current accounts - 11,B85,59,802.00 22,83.05,142.00
b, Cash on hand - - 6,81,458.00 22,67.336.00
. Other Bank balances
Deposits with more than 12 months 2632,85.729.00 | 45,01,34,034.00 -
maturity
Total 36,34,85,749.00 | 45,01,34,034.00 | 11,82.41,261.00 | 23,0572 478,00 |
NOTE 16
Short-term loans and advances
As at 31 March, As at 31 March, e
Particulars 2016 2015
{in T) 1R 4]
Unsecured, considerad good
a) Balances with government authorithes ;
(i) Tax deducted at source 72,83,313.00 1.06,17,838.00
{ii] Advance income tax 1.50,00,000.00 2,20.0:0,000.00
b} Othar loans and ddvances ;
1i] Advances to Suppllers/Contrators B.54,63,373.00 L,65,08,124.00
(i} Prepaid Expenses 11,21,515.00 18,37,847.00
{iil}) Service Tax Credit 5,61,357.00 11,57,232.00
{iv)Prepaid Bank Guranise charges 37,00,170.00 31,99,563.00
{v] Cther Advances recoverable in 45.062.00 -
cash or kind
Total 11,41 84, 790.00 20,604.00




NOTE 17

Revenue from Operations
As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
Particulars 2016 2015
{n%) {in %)
Income Recognised on completed Real -
Estate Projects 23,22.65,470.00 49,6867,116.00

Income Recognised on under
construction Real Estate Projects

62,22,10,954.00

1.00,73,32,884.00

Total B85,44,76,424.00 1,50,42,00.000.00
NOTE 18
Other incorme
As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
Particulars 2016 2015
(In%) {in¥)

Interest income from

Bank Deposits 3,95,30,977.00 5.94.64,B65.00
- | Customers 86,77.364.00 1.81.01.973.00
Other Income
DOther Non-Operating Income 3,23,89,981.00 3,61.45.806.00
Total 8,05,98,322.00 11,37,12,644.00
NOTE 19
Employee benefits expenses
As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
Particulars 2016 2015
(inT) {In T}
Salaries, wages and incentives 5,02,57,954.00 7,67,40,376.00
Contributions to -
Provident fund 10.59,752.00 8.27,059.00
ESI 78,902.00 78,323.00
Gratuity Paid 77,019.00 97,212.00
Staff welfare expenses 6,55,000.00 10,52,498.00
Total 5.,21.28,667.00 7.87.95,468.00
NOTE 20
Finance costs
As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
Particulars 2016 2015
{InT) {In %)
Intersst expense 8.61.447.00 10,73,365.00
B.61,447.00 10,73,365.00




NOTE 21

Other expenses
As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
Particulars 2016 2015
{in T) {in®)

Advertisement & Business Promotion 23,13,733.00 54,89,350.00
Accounting Charges 1.00,000.00 1.00.000.00
Bank Charges 1,48,125.00 2,41.,905.00
Computer Expenses 4,48,225.00 2,69,364.00
Office Maintenance 1,90,780.00 5,57,936.00
Wehicle Maintenance 16.43,299.00 11,32.,451.00
Other Repairs & Maintenance 3,27,630.00 3,88.480.00
Foreign Exchange Difference -1,54,583.00 1,03,594.00
Penalties and Tax demands 63,062.00 2,34,320.00
Printing and Statlonery 7.14,272.00 14,12,495.00
Insurance 12,78,529.00 10,18,582.00
Interest on Taxes 1,78,269.00 9,73,346.00
Donations and charity * 39,69,712.00 47,66,799.00
Audit Fees 4,45 740.00 3,50,000.00
Power, Fuel & Water 51,39,803.00 44,01,176.00
Legal & Professional FE!S 24,72.733.00 30,08,520.00
Telephone & Internet Charges 8,70.270.00 9,48, 125.00
T_ra-u!llng & Conveyance 41,91,871.00 B9,34,352.00
Office Rent 1,15,58,400.00 1.20,36,750.00
Security Expenses 18,61.715.00 19,39.230.00
Miscellaneous Expenses 41,66,146.00 45,18,248.00

Total | 4,19,27,731.00 5,28,25,023 00

* include corporate social respasibiiity expenses

NOTE 22
Prior Period Expenses

As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
Particulars 2016 2015
{in ) {in%)
income Tax Paid = 2,00,000.00
Total - 2,00,000.00
NOTE 23
Earning Per Share
Basic Earning Per Share 2015-16 2014-15
Weighted average number of shares 2.00.00,000.00 2,00,00,000.00
considered for calculation of EPS
Net Profit after tax (T) 4.18,29,768.00 5,24.69,323.00
Basic Earning Per Share (¥) 2.09 2.62
Face Value Per Share (T) 10.00 10.00
Diluted Earning Per Share 2015-16 2014-15
Weighted average number of shanes 2,00,00.000.00 Z,00,00,000.00
considered for calculation of EPS
Net Profit after tax (T) 4.18,29.768.00 5.24,69,.3213.00
Diluted Earning Per Share (T} 2.08 2.62
Face Value Per Share (¥) 10.00 10.00




NOTE 24
Related party disclosures
{as per AS- 18 "Related Party Disclosures” as specified under Section 133 of the

Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as
amended) (refer annexueres -A))

NOTE 25
Balances of some of the sundry debtors, sundry creditors, advances given, advances

recaived are subject to recondiliation and confirmation from respective parties. The
balance of the sald sundry debtors, sundry craditars, and advances given and raceived
are taken as shown by the books of atcounts. The ultimate outcome of sueh
reconcillation and confirmation cannot be determined presantly, Therefore, no
provision far any fability that may result out of such réconciliation and confirmation has
besn made |n the financial staterment, the financial impact of which is unascertainable,
due to the reason as above stated.

NOTE 26
in the opinion of the Board of Directors and to the best of their knowledge and belief, all

Current assets, loans and advances have a value on realization which in the ordinary
course of the business would not be less than the amount at which they are stated in
the balance sheet and the provisions for all known and determined liabilities are
adeqguate and nat in excess of the amount reasonably required.

NOTE 27
Contingent Liabilities :
-AS on 31st March, 2016, there stands a contingent liabillty amounting to T 836 lacs

towards Oriental bank of Commerce and T 3826 lacs towards Punjab Mational Bank on
account of Guarantees given by them o The Director, Town & Country Planning,
Chandigarh towards Internal & External Development charges related to wvarious
projects undertaken by the company,

NOTE 28
The Company is primarily engaged in the business of real estate development, which as

per Accounting Standard - 17 on “Segment Reporting” notified pursuant to the
Companies {Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006 issued by the Central Government in
exercise of the powers conferred wnder sub-section (1)(a)] of Section 642 of the
Companies Act, 1956 |s considered to be the only reportable business segment. The
Company is primarily operating in India which is considerad as a single geographical
segment.

NOTE 29
As per Accounting Standard 15 * Employee Benefits”, the disclosures as defined in the

Accounting standard are given below:

Defined Contribution Plans

2015-16 2014-15
Employer's Contribution to provident fund 49.44,790.00 54,12,476.00
Empioyer's Contribution to ESI 4,54,902.00 78,323.00

Leave Encashmant
Provision for the leave encashment in respect of unavailed |eaves standing to the credit

of employees & made on accrual basis. The Company does not rmaintain any fund to
e,

pay for leave encashment. g_p\ & =.

* .




MNOTE 30
Expenditure in forelgn currency

As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
PBarticulars 2016 2015
{inT} {in T}
Others 4,14,44,230.00 1,75,52,714.00
Total 4,14,44,230,00 1,75.52,714.00
NOTE 31 i

Income tax Matters

During the year ended 31st March, 2016, the company recelved an assessment
order for AY. 2013-14 from the Income Tax Authorities, creating a demand of ¥
5,58,44,860/- an account of disallowance of deduction Ufs 80-18 of the Income Tax
Act, 1961

The Company have filed appeal before the OT (Appeals) against the said
assessment order. Based on the similar cases of the company for previous years
which have been decided in favour of the company by ITAT Delhi no provision has
been made in these financial statments.

NOTE 32
Corporate Soclal Responsibility expenses

a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year Is
36.86,613)-
b} Amount spent during the year Is ¥ 38,0581 2/-

NOTE 33
Previous years figures have been regrouped/recast, whereever considersed

necessary to make them comparable with those of current years

As per our Seperate Report of even date
Faor and on behalf of the Board of directors of
Tulip infratech Private Limited

rveen Jaln) (Vipin Jain)

Director Diractor
M.NO : 072416 DIN: 00142181 DIN: DO052522
Place ; New Delhi (Pawan |aju) I

Date @) -Of Ml Vice President Cum Company Secretary
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PARTICULARS COST AS ON ADOITION! DELETIONS | TOTALASON [ oo r o | DEPRECIATION WOVASON | WOV ASON

01042015 | TRANSFERRED | TRANSFERRED | 31032016 | AS ON 01.04.2015 uihnulﬂﬂm AHUAITED Hﬁlﬂ: 032006 | 3103201

' OFFICE ATCP 203 49.800,00 2 .039.45,800.00 2,03 407500 00 | 70345 800,00 |

| EIXED ASSETS OFFICE

EOMPUTER B0, 090 00 665,40, 000 00 549,77, 118.00 2,52.484.00 A2 66,602 00 3.70.486.00 6,62,872.00 |

 FURNITURE & FIRTURES 1,27 B0 65 00 1.7 B3 856,00 75, 16,460 00 14 B6,618.00 BRB33T000| 7 p0o8i00]|  Saa7 168001

OFFICE EQUIPSIENTS 1,165,868 41000 . 1,15, 88 410.00 710,38, 347 00 18.23,538,00 B 61,885 00 2624 528 DD 45 48 063,00

| VEHICLES ABTS3NIT00] SS9GBIA00]| seesBroc0| EoUeiEARd|  Seimaiacn] | eadbdre00| Saposiamn] i EEm | TH S EiaEaa | 1,

| INTANGIBLE ASSETS

SOFTWARE & TRADEMARK 21,52 456,00 8206400 22 54 550 00 13,12,563 o0 3,82,606 00 16,05 065 00 5 54 48100 B.45,893 00

SUS TOTAL 1022.9953200 | 56.09.01000 | 348367000 | 10452066300 | 5088735000 1089182500 ] 329051500 | 5848275500 | 4.00,57.69500] 51414 17400

EE

| FIXED ASSETS RUNDL NEW TOWER 218441800 21,94,418.00 H,74,958 00 EXF R 12.03,136.00 2518700 | 131845800

| FIXED A, PAT DAL 25,04,033 00 25 04 533,00 14,36 645 00 2,62 #7800 16,93, 623,00 E1131000 | 1074 98500
1,186,400 345 00 7 50 B45 00 18,89 500,00 | 65,30 085 00 5,58, 086 00 .ﬂ.ﬁ_viﬂ 1361 644 00 527 854 00 50,10, 208 00
1,99.85 160 00 T34 063 00 105,20 752 09 B76.727 00 21 87 278 o 1168385600 | 7R 50276 00 | wa 08643 nn |

SUB TOTAL 8,57,25 565 00 134083001 975084500 2610906000 1.64,12.38700 JiMARI00| S82950000| 1.5872.36100] 1008672200] 1731347800

TOTAL 13802138700 | 582307300 | 1,32,14,720.00 | 13.06.29.746.00 SI2BIT4ED0 | 1422040800 | 91,97.024.00 | 7440512500 5.62.24817.00 | 68727 65200




F LTD.
IO A A A 201518
PARTICULARS RATE i_U.w. A5 AT — W”.U-H—Mﬂ p— iﬂﬁvﬁmu TOTAL o ﬂiﬁdw‘“ﬂﬂﬂ—lﬁi HNIHMMH-.:E ﬂuﬂﬂnﬂ
01.04.2015 MORE DAYS MORE 180 DAYS | FOR THE YEAR
o
[COFFICE BUILOWG AT CP 7 08 45,800 60 3,.03,45,B00 00 7,03 48,800 00
SLE TOTAL 203,49 800 00 2,03,49,800.80 2,03,48,000.00
MEIGCR= T | ow
FURNITURE & FIXTURES B2 6778500 ESE77EEDO | B@aTrOOD 838 778.00 74,58 009,00
5L TOTAL B2,87,785.00 826778500 |  B.28.770.00 8,78,779.00 74,50,006.00
=Bt 15%
| EXED ASSETS GFRICE
(OFFICE EQUIPMENTS, 7B, 18 034 60 7o 1808400 | 117270500 11,72.705.00 BE.AS_ 320 00 |
VERICLES 253 30496 DO 55P6UIB00|  52100000| 3439641200] 431002400 41576900 47 3369300 | 208 5A 71900
i
| CCDASSETSATRITE
PLANT & MACHIMNERY 1,95,60,456. 00 1,34.063.00 16,12,000.00 1,80.83,518.00 2712558 00 2712528 .00 1.53,70.691.00
SLE TOTAL 5,566,509 088,00 1,34,063.00 55,96,516,00 21,33,000.00 | GOZ7T965.00 | BLOSA5T.00 | 41076000 B6,24,926,00 §,16,73,038,00
(=]
[COMPUTER & FARDWARE 3,84 500 00 SEEbO06 | 3387e0 00 230,760 00 1,53 640,00 |
508 TOTAL 3,84,600.00 3,54,500.00 |  230,780.00 2,30,760.00 1,52,040.00
5%
COMPUTER SOF TWARE &
TRADEMARK 9,03 041,00 o2 054,00 5,35.143.00 248, TBE.DO 2 48.785 00 746,357 00
SUB TOTAL %,03,049.00 52,004.00 B.95,143.00 |  2,48,786.00 2,48,786.00 7 45,357.00
TOTAL B,66, 25 220,00 22515700 |  B596516.00 21,33.000.00 [ 8,03.15293.00 | 954348200 | 4,19.780.00 98,33, 254.00 E
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Tulip Infratech Private Limited

Balance Sheet as at 31st March . 2017
CIN; UT01010L200SPTCL44086

Note As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
Particuiars e 2017 2016
3 {in &) in )
I |EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1|Shareholdars' funds
{a) Share capital 2 200.000,000.00 200,000,000.00
(k) Réserves and surphus 3 BEZ.413,703.00 B35,142.053.00
2| Mon-current labilities
(3l Long-term bormowengs 4 B8,100,204,00 3.404,701.00
(o) Cther Long-term lHabllibes 5 27,119.911.00 374 288,457 00
I Current liabilities
fa} Trade payaties 181,601, 188.00 284 880,533 00
1B} Qther currgnt Labilities ] 1479,556.853.00 1.256,590.667 00
gl Snom-Tarm provesions T 28,164.381.00 25.276,443.00
TOTAL 2,815,047,030.00 2,479,562, 86000
I, |ASSETS
Non-current assets
1lta} Fix2d assets
il Tangible assets 8 56.611,082.00 55,665,136.00
(4] Irtangible Assets 178,875.00 550,481 .00
b}  Investments 9 19,094 995 .00 19,999,895 00
[e) Deferred Tax Assets (Nat) 10 B,526,638,00 71.9687,169.00
(@)  Leng-tarm loans and advances 11 516,576.609.00 509506, 747.00
(e}  Ctihver non-current assets 12 163,036, B66 0D 783 285,749.00
2| Current assats
(8] Inwentores 13 1.809,427.000.00 1,852.500,010.00
(B] Trade Réceivables 14 40,987 577 00 16.543.522.00
|ch  Cash and cash egulvalents 15 67,319,374 00 119.241,261,00
idl  Shor-term loans and advances 16 133,364 B34 00 114,184,790.00
TOTAL 2 B15 04 7.030.00 2,979, BE0.00
Summary of significant accounting
palicias 1
Note Nos 1 to 34 Form an integral part of
these Financial Statements

As per pur Seperate Report of even date
For PRA & CO. —y

Chartered Accountants -

FAN: 017903 s

Place ; New Delhi

B 909.9401F

For and on behalf of the Board of directors of

Tulip Infratech Private Limited

ﬂ'.-“ L—;—? —_—
!Pl.l'g;n} Wipin Jain}
Director Diirector .
DiN: 00142181 DiN: 00052522

{Pawan |aju) I

Vice Preskdent Cum Company Secretary




Tulip Infratech Private Limited
Profit and Loss statement for the year ended 31st March, 2017
CIM: U7010100L2005PTCL44086

Note | 715 8t 31 Marck, As at 31 March,
Particulars Na 2017 2018
: {in €} {in ¥}
|, (Revenue from operations 17 1.170.728.208.00 854, 476.424.00
. jOther Income 18 37.320.506.00 B0,598,322.00
., |Total Revenus (I + 1) 1,206.048,714.00 935.074,746.00
|Expanses:
feal estate project expenditure 1.060,818,386.00 7E5,449.839.00
Empioyee benefits axpense 19 35,186,962.00 52, 128.667.00
Finance costs 20 B63.467 00 BEL.447.00
Depreciation and amortization axpense 9,633,359.00 10,891,925.00
Other expenses 21 29,214,073.00 41,937 .731.00
Iv. [Total expenses 1,135,816.2 [ 571,259,609.00]
A mmm Tax and prior period items 72.232.467.00 £3.815,137.00
Wi, [Tax Expenss
(1) Current tax 25,174,538.00 24,165,672.00
(2] Defarred tax (539, 469.00) (2.180.303.00)
Profit after tax but before prior period
vl ,w o 47,597,398.00 |  41,829,768.00
Vill. |Priar period axpenses ol 325,748.00 -
1%, [Met profit for the year 47.271,650.00 41,823,768.00
Earnings per equity share: 23
{1} Basic 136 209
(2) Dilutad 1.36 209
Ssummary of significant accounting] 1
policles
*|Mote Mos 1 ko 34 Form an integral part off
these Financial Statements
As per gur Separate Report of even date
For PRA & CO. For and on behalf of the Board of directors of
Charterad Accouniants - — - Tul'p Infratech Private Limited
FRN: DLTR03N AL :
: [ ——
~ (Arvind Kumar Gupta) {Parveen jain) {Wigin Jain)
© Partner \ Director Director
M.NG : 072418 ok i, R DiM: 00142181 DIN: Q_DD‘HSEI
Flace : New Delhi {Pawan |aju)
Date 'm-ﬂ“.m'i‘:F‘ Vice Pfresident Cum Company Secratary
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NOTE 3

Other Habl
g at 31 March As at 31 March,
Fanticulars 017 016
HLE 4] {in®)
Propect Development expenses - 347.300.000.00
Security Deposits 7119,911.00 16.568,457.00
Tota] ZLUSFIL00 | 378768 357 00
NOTE &
Other current Aabilities
As at 31 March, As 3t 31 March,
Earticylprs 7 2016
{in ) (b
Current maturities of Long-term debt (Retar
Note 4) 5.511.414.00 5,708, 747.00
Salaries, wages & Incentives pavabile 5.331.943.00 4,942, 063,00
Statutary Habilities -
PF payable 1.456.246.00 655.772.00
ESI payabie 553.B82.00 203.291.00
Duties and taxes payable B.430.918.00 2.44%9,146.00
Audit lee payabie 367.500.00 365, 750.00
|Advances raceived agamst Prosect 1.418.268,184.00| 1,125813.308.00
|Expanses Payabie 12,287.078.00 25.781.192,00
Land Cost payable 16,348, 788.00 B0.674,400.00
ot 75,53 MR LXIIC A
NOTE 7
Short term provisions
As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
Particulars 2017 2016
lin ) {n ¥
Provision far Employee Benefits 985,843,000 L.110,771.00
Provision far income-tax 25,174 538.00 24,165,672.00
ACI] BTS00 | 7577643 00
NGOTE 9
InvEstmEnts
As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
Badiculars 2017 2016
[in e} {in )
[imvestment in Shares 19,599.995.00 159,9499,995.00
L2 19,939 995001 19,935 565,60
NOTE 10
Dafermed tax Assests (Met)
As at 31 March, Az at 31 March,
Barthculars 2017 ~ 2016
{In® {in €}
Drefwrred Tax Assets
Cin account of Timing difference in:
(ot Depreciation and amorisation B.526.038.00 7.887,165.00

Deferred tax Assels (Net)

B3i5,CaR 00l TISTISRR0)




NOTE 11
Long term oans and advances

As at 31 March, As 8t 31 March,
Barticuiars 2017 2016
fing) {inT)
() Payments made under agreement 1o
purchase land/development rights and
govt fees. 286,462,651 .00 283,335.215.00
(il} Security Deposits
Praject Securnity Depasit 191,248,100.00 181,248, 100.00
Cther Security Deposit 15,660.000.00 25.825,000.00
(lil} Balance with governmant authorities
Pradeposit of iT Demand{aY 2009-10) 2.500,000.00 2,500,000.00
(v} Other advances
Frepaid Bank Gurantes charges 355,248.00 1,038,432.00
Other Advances 10,150.000.00 5.650,000,00
~ Total 516,576,609.00 | 500.598,747.00 ]
NOTE 12
F Non- curment a
As at 31 March, As at 31 Manch,
Barticulars 2017 2016
(In%) {n %)
Mon- current Bank balances | Aefer Note-
15) 163,036,866.00 283,285,749,00
Tl L AN WL LA RS
NOTE 13
Inventories
AS at 31 March, As at 31 March,
Barticulars 2017 2018
{in ) {in¥)
Land, piots and construction Wirie-in-
progress 1,809,427,000.00 1.852.500,010.00
TOTAL 1809 237 000,00 | 1,857 500,010.00]
NOTE 14
Trade Recelvables
As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
Particylsrs 2017 2016-
{ine) [Im )
Trade Recelvabies outstanding 40,987.577.00 16.542,522.00 |
Unsétured, considered gaod
TOTAL 40.5987.577.00 16,547,522.00 |

i




NCTE 15

Cash and Cash equivaients Nor- current Current
As ar 31 March, As at 31 March, As st 31 March, As st 31 March,
Pacticulars 2017 2016 2017 e
(I} {In¥) {in ) {In %)
a. Balances with banks.
b CUrtent accounts 66, 77042500 118.558, B02.00
b, Cash an hand 540.949.00 681,459,00
¢, Other Bank balances
Depasits with more than 12 months 163.036.866.00 2H3,285,749.00 = -
maturity
Tota] TeIUSEEeGT0 | 28328574500 | B 31597400 | TISSALIBLO0]
NOTE 18
Short-term loans and advances
As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
Barticulars 2017 2018
{in ¥} {inT)
|Ungecyred, consigered good
{a) Balances with government nuthorities !
[i] Tax deductad at spurce 9,796,341.00 7.293.313.00
[ii} Advance income tax L5, 000, 000,00 15.000,000.00
(&) Other loans and aOvances :
it} Advances to Supphiers/Contrators 105.333,114.00 #6.463,373.00
i) Prepaid Expenses B25,804,00 1.121.515.00
(i} Serwoe Tax Credit 228.870.00 561.357.00
{iv}Prepald Bank Gurantes charges 1.200.695.00 3,700,170.00
{v) Other Advances recoverable in - 45,062.00
cash or kingd
Total 132,384, 824.00 114,184,760.00




NOTE 17
Revenue from Operations

Particulars

As at 31 March,
2017
{inT)

As at 31 March,
2016
(InT

income Recognised on Real Estate
Projects

1.170,728,208.00

B54,.476,424.00

Total 1,170,728,208.00 B54.476,424.00
NOTE 18
Jther income
As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
Earticulars 017 2016
{in %) {in%)
Interest income from
Bank Deposits 15,241,080.00 39,530.977.00
Cuslomers 10.551,295.00 8.677.364.00
Other Income
Other Non-Operating income 11,528,131.00 32,389,981.00
Total 37,320,506.00 B0.598,322.00
NOTE 19
Employee benefits expenses
As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
Particulars 2017 2016
{In T} {inT)
Salaries, wages and incentives 32,182.845.00 50.257,954.00
Cantributions to -
Provident fund 238,956.00 1.059,792.00
ES| 91.819.00 78.902.00
Gratuity Pald 328,846.00 77.019.00
Staff welfare expenses 1.644 496.00 £55,000.00
Total 35,186,962.00 52,128.667.00
NOTE 20
Finance costs
As at 31 March, As at 31 March,
Particulars 2017 2016
{In T} {in T}
Interest expansa B63.467.00 B61,447.00
Total B63,467.00 BE1,447.00




NOTE 21

Dther expenses
As at 31 March, As gt 31 March,
Particulars 2017 2016
[T} {In T}
Advertiserment & Business Pramotion 2.632,921.00 2,313,733.00
ACCouniing Charges 100,000.00 10000000
{Bank Charges 275,570.00 148,125.00
[Computer Expenses 305,078.00 44B8.225.00
[office Maintenance 486,502 00 190,780.00
Wehicle Malntenance 1.955.461.00 1.643,2099.00
Other Repairs & Malntenance B60.267.00 3327,.630.00
[Foreign Exthange Difference -50.501.00 -154 583.00
|Penalties and Tax demands 175.536.00 63,062.00
Printing and Sistionery 934,330.00 114,272.00
Inurance 1.034.320.00 1.278.529.00
Interest on Taxes 466,433.00 178,269.00
jDonations and charity * 2 564 880.00 3.968,.712.00
{Audit Fees 350.000.00 445 740,00
{Power, Fusl & Water 4,574 G87.00 5,139, B03.00
Legal & Professional Fees §20,462.00 2.472,733.00
Telephone & Intemet Charges 910,308.00 B70.270.00
Travalling & Conveysnie 4 185, 653.00 4,191,871.00
Office Rent 2,BA9,600.00 11,558,400.00 |
Sacurity Expenses 1,569,733.04 1,881, 715.00
Miscellaneous Expenses 2,501.732.00 4,166, 146.00
Total 20,314,073.00 41.927,731.00
* |nclude corporate social resposibliiby expenses
NOTE 23
Pripr Period Expenses
As-at 31 March, As at 31 March,
ERCUCUars 2017 2016
(LR 4] {In T}
tncome Tax Pald AY 2007-08 128 480.00 =
|incomi Tax Paid AY 2011-12 197.268.00
Total I!_!.HB.D!-'I =
NOTE 23
Earning Per Share
Basic Par Share 2018-17 2015-18
‘Wialghted avarage number of shares 20.000.000.00 20,000, 000.00
considered for calculation of EPS
Mat Profit after tax (T) 47.271,650,00 41.879.768.00
«|Basic Eaming Per Share (1) .36 2.03
Face Valus Per Share (%) 10,00 10.00
|Diluted Eaming Per Share 2016-17 2015-16
Welgnted averadge number of shares 20,000.000.00 20,000,000.00
considered for calculakion of EPS
Het Profit after tax (T) 47.271,650.00 41.839.768.00
|EBluted Eatning Per Share (T) 2.38 2.03
Face Walug Per Shars %) 10.00 1000
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NOTE T4
Aedated party discioIures

(ms per AS- 1B “Related Perty Disclosures® as specified wnder Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Ruies, 2014 (as

amedded] (refer annsxusre -l

NOTE 25

Salances of some of the sundry deblors, sundry creditors, advancesd given, advances
received are subject to reconcillaton and confirmation from respective parties. The
palance af the said sindry debmans, sundry creditons, and advances glven and recerved

are faken as shown by the books of accounts

The uitimate outcome of wuwch

recondciliation and confinmation Cannor De Jetermined presently. Trerefore. nn provision
for amy Malslity that may hesull out of such reconcilistion and confinmatodn has been
made in the financial statemant, the financesl impack of which is unascerainabie, dus fa

e rason Bs above stated

NOTE 28

In the: opinion of the Board of Directors and to the best of their knowledge and balief, all
Curment assets, loans and advances have 3 value on realization which in the ardinary
course of the business would not be |ess than the amount at which they are staved In
the balance sheet and the provisions for all known and determined labilites are
adequate and not in excess of 1he amount reasanably reguiren,

NOTE 27
Sontingent Listdlives

A5 on 31st March, 2017, there stands @ contingent Habilty amounting to © B36 lacs
owangs Onental bank of Commarce and T 3836 lacs towards Purgab National Rank on
actount of Guarantees ghven by them to The Director, Tewn & Country Planning,
Chantigarh towards internal & External Develaprment chames related to various

projects undertaken by the comipany.

NOTE 28

The Comgany Is primarlly engaged In the business of real estste development. which as
pef Accounting Standard - 17 an “Segment Reporting” notified pursuant to the
Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2008 lssued by the Central Govemment In
exercise of the powers conferred under sub-section (11} of Section 842 of the
Companias Act, LO%6 is contidered to De the only repoitable Dusiness segmant The
Comgany is primarily aperating i india which I consadered a8 @ single geograghical

SEQMIENL

NOTE 29

A5 per Accounting Standard 13 * Employes Benefits®, the disclosures as defined In the

Accaunting standard are given balow:

Defined Contribution Plans

Employers Contribution 1o provident fund

Emplayer's Contribution to 5
Leave Encashmeant

F016-17
3,743,406.00
1.021.114.00

2015-16
4,044, 760.00
A54.902.00

* Prowigion for the leave encashment in respect of unavailed leaves standing to the credit
of employess (s made an socrual basis. The Company does not maintain any fund o pay

" Tar Iagve ancashment,

NOTE 30
Exgenditure in forelgn currency

As at 31 March, A5 at 31 March,
Faticulars 2017 2016
(i) iine
Othirs e 16.106,942.00 41,444, 230,00
i LT ) M 1T



NOTE 31
Iincome tax Matters

During the year ended 31st March, 2017, the company recelved assecement orders for
AY 2014-15 & 2015-16 fram the Income Tax Authorities, creating a demand of T
93.85,010y- & T 1,04,05,721/- on account of disallowance of deduction Ufs 438 of the
Income Tax &ct, 1961 The Company have filed appeal before the CIT (Appeals) against
the sald assessmMent arder

During the year ended 315t March, 2017, the department of income Tax has filed appeal
against the company in ITAT for the AY, 2007-08, 2008-09 & 2009-10 , which has been
decided in favour of the company. Department has decided to appeal in High Court
against the same

NOTE 32
Corporate Social Responsibility expenses

4] Gross amount reguired to be spent by the Company during the year s ¥ 33,60,61F-

b} Amount spent during the year is ¥ 24.00,000/-

NOTE 33

Disclosure on Specified Bank Motes (SBNs)

Dunng the year, the Company had specified bank notes [S8Ms) and other denomination notes as defined in the
MCA notification G.5.A. J0B(E) dated I0th March, 2017, on the details of Specified Bank Nobes (58MNs] held and
trangacked during the period from Bth Nowvember, 2016 ta 30t December, 2016, the denomination wise SENS and
other notes as per the notification is given balow:

Gther Denomination
HBNs™ ¢ Total
- 3.071.517.00 3,071,517.00
2,450,000.00 - 2,450,000,00
- 1.116,435.00 1.116.439.00 |
Closing cash In hand as on 30th
December, 2016 2,450,000.00 1.955,078.00 4.405.078.00

* For the purpose of this clayse "Specified Bank Notes' shall have the same meaning provided in the notification of
tre Governmant of india, in the Minktry of Finance, Departmeant of Econamic Affairs nurmber 5.0. 3407(E), dated
the Bth Mowernber, 2016

NOTE 34
Frevibus years flgures havé been regmupedirecast, whereever considered necessary to make them comparabie
with those af current years

Az pef our Seperate Report of even date

For PRA & CO. For and an behalf of the Board of directors of
Chartersd Accountants Tulip Infratech Private Limited
FRN: QI7S03N 0
e e -
{ Jain) {Vipin jaln) =
Director Director
DdN; 00142181 DiN: Q0052522

Place - Naw Dalhi {Pawan jajul | [

Date - plQ9. 201F Vice President Cum Company Secretary
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